
PUBLIC DEFENDER SERVICE CORPORATION 
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, March 15, 2016 – 12:30 p.m. 
Conference Room 

Public Defender Service Corporation 

A G E N D A 

I. Call to Order

II. Roll Call

III. Proof of Due Notice of Meeting:
A. Notice: 5 Working Days The Guam Post, Wednesday, March 9, 2016 

B. Notice: 48 Hours The Guam Post, Friday, March 11, 2016 

IV. Determination of a Quorum

V. Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting of Thursday, February 25, 2016

VI. Old Business:
A. Financial Status Update (PDSC and Domestic Violence) Allotment Releases
B. Financial Status Update (APD) Allotment Releases
C. Alternate Public Defender Update
F. Board Composition
G. APD Corporate Vehicle Acquisition (Procure/Lease)
H. APD Shanks Training – Co-share of Cost

VII. New Business:
A. APD FY2017 Budget

VIII. Public Discussion:

IX. Adjournment and Next Meeting Date:
Tuesday, April 26, 2016 at 12:30PM 







 
 

Page 1 of 5 

PUBLIC DEFENDER SERVICE CORPORATION 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Regular Meeting 
of 

Thursday, February 25, 2016 
12:30PM 

Public Defender Service Corporation 
Conference Room 

 
M  I  N  U  T  E  S 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER: 
 
The meeting was called to order by the Chairman, Chief Justice Robert J. Torres, Jr., at 12:41 
PM.  
 

II. ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:   Chief Justice Robert J. Torres, Jr., Chairman 
   Presiding Judge Alberto C. Lamorena, III    

Attorney Donna M. Cruz, Member  
 
Absent:   Attorney Jehan’ad G. Martinez, Guam Bar Assoc. President (Excused)  

Mrs. Annette J.U. Ada, Member (Excused) 
 

Others Present:  Attorney Eric D. Miller, PDSC Executive Director 
   Attorney AnaMaria C. Gayle, APD Managing Attorney 
   Cathy Gogue, Administrative Director 
   Bernadette L.P. Lizama, Personnel Specialist IV  
   Michael S. Moreno, Chief Fiscal Officer 
   Julito B. Tingson, MIS Administrator 
   Kenneth A. Lim, Computer Systems Analyst 
   Cecelia M. Fernandez, Administrative Assistant 
   Attorney Stephen P. Hattori 
   Attorney Suresh Sampath 
   Robbie Call, Chief Investigator 
   Janet Rosario, Legal Secretary III 
 

III. PROOF OF DUE NOTICE OF MEETINGS: 
“Notice of Public Meeting” was published in the Guam Post on Wednesday, March 9, 2016 and 
Friday, March 11, 2016. 

IV. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: 
With the presence of three (3) out of the five (5) board members, a quorum was determined for 
the meeting. 
 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Minutes of the regular board meeting held on Thursday, February 
25, 2016, were adopted and approved – subject to corrections. 
 



 
 

Page 2 of 5 

VI. OLD BUSINESS: 
 
A. Financial Status Update (PDSC, Domestic Violence and APD Allotment Releases):  

Chief Fiscal Officer Michael Moreno reported that PD continues to be in constant 
communication with Department of Administration regarding the release of allotments. 
From the last meeting, DOA sent a schedule that outlines PD releases for the remainder of 
the fiscal year. In addition to the schedule, we received the first-half of January’s allotment 
and are now at a seventy-four percent (74%) level, compared to our last board meeting 
when our allotments were at sixty-five percent (65%) in February.  
 
Chief Justice Robert J. Torres inquired about the set-side DOA withheld at the start of the 
fiscal year. CFO Moreno advised the board that the repayment of the garnishment is 
included in the schedule provided by DOA.  
 
Domestic Violence (STOP 2014 Grant Funding): CFO Moreno reported that we 
submitted our request for grant funding through the STOP 2015 grant cycle. Currently, we 
have enough funds to support the program up until the end of March. We are now just 
waiting word from the Federal Programs Office relative to the approval of our request for 
the STOP 2015 funding. Chief Justice Torres suggested that we stay on top of this as funds 
will be exhausted at the end of March.   
 
APD Allotment:  CFO Moreno reported that we received from the Judiciary the second 
quarter allotment for APD. We are at a 100% funding level for APD.  
 

B. Alternate Public Defender Update:  Attorney Gayle reported that since the last meeting, 
Attorney Steve Hattori has transferred back to Public Defender as of February 12, and we 
are now going through the recruitment process to fill his position. The recruitment 
announcement is out and will close tomorrow (February 26) for an Attorney IV. No 
applications have been submitted to PD; however, we believe that the applications will 
come in tomorrow prior to the closure of the announcement. 
 
In addition to filling this vacancy, all attorneys from APD attended the Shanks-Kindlon 
training – which was a success. We learned a lot from the duo and those who attended 
recommended the Shanks-Kindlon team provide additional training for PD/APD attorneys. 
Perhaps a session or two can be opened to the private bar; however, it is important for 
PD/APD attorneys continue to receive hands on training such as that provided by Shanks-
Kindlon. 
 

C. APD Managing Attorney’s Performance Evaluation:  The performance evaluation is 
complete for the APD’s Managing Attorney. Chief Justice Torres stated that this item will 
be discussed in Executive Session first before we call in the Managing Attorney to go over 
her evaluation. We will reconvene the meeting once all matters are discussed in Executive 
Session. 
 

D. Executive Director Search: Attorney Donna Cruz, the Executive Director Search 
Committee Chairperson, advised the board that the committee has completed their review 
and interviews with the applicants, and that the committee has a recommendation to present 
to the board. Chief Justice Torres stated that this item will also be addressed in Executive 
Session.  
  



 
 

Page 3 of 5 

E. Board Composition: Chief Justice Torres reported that we have the final version of the 
board composition and that we have already met with a number of senators (Senators 
Aguon, Ada and Torres) and we are  working on meeting with Senator Tina Muña-Barnes 
as well as Vice-Speaker BJ Cruz in the next couple of weeks. Of the senators whom we 
have met with, they are supportive of the recommended changes; however, a few have 
asked why we are recommending the removal of the Chief Justice and Presiding Judge 
from the PD board. Chief Justice Torres has requested that Executive Director Miller 
provide some sort of rationale that will help justify the recommendation to remove the 
Chief Justice and Presiding Judge from the board. While we have discussed the change 
during numerous board meetings, it would be advisable that we have something in writing 
so that we have a consistent theme when discussing such change. Some of the comments 
we have received from a few of the senators is that we have been existing with the current 
composition and they do not understand why there is a need to change the composition 
now. Consequently, it is important to have a fact sheet, which supports the change, 
available so that we can eliminate any perceived issues relative to having or not having the 
Chief Justice and Presiding Judge on the PDSC board.    

 
F. APD Corporate Vehicle Acquisition (Procure/Lease): Attorney Gayle asked that this 

item continue to remain on the agenda. Chief Justice Torres advised Attorney Gayle that 
one of the auto dealerships here in Guam will soon be offering mainland leasing rates. 
Based on what he has learned, this dealership has been approved by the manufacturer to 
provide direct leases. With this alternative, it may make sense to lease a vehicle for APD. 
Attorney Gayle asked remain as status quo until such time that more information is 
gathered. 

 
VII. New Business: 

 
A. PDSC Retro Pay Reconstruction (Attorneys: Richard Dirkx, Ana Maria Gayle, Peter 

Sablan and William Jones):  Personnel Specialist Bernie Lizama explained to the board 
that as she continues to audit personnel files, she is ensuring that salary increments as well 
as Step Classifications are properly slotted for employees. With the implementation of the 
Competitive Wage Act (CWA) of 2014, the attorneys needed to be re-slotted, evaluated as 
well as accurately placed in the correct pay scale that would be reflective of their 
increments. That being said, we need to provide retro-pay, to include making the attorneys 
increments current for Attorneys Richard Dirkx, Ana Maria Gayle, Peter Sablan and 
William Jones. The reconstruction schedule and payment amounts provided to the board 
for their review and approval, with some money coming from lapsed funds, totaling 
$83,455.76.  
 
The reconstruction schedule for each of the attorneys are attached to the minutes. 
 
Based on the schedules presented, motion was made and seconded to approve 
$83,455.76 from PDSC/APD lapsed funds and FY2016 budget to correct the salaries 
for the attorneys identified the Retro Pay Reconstruction. Motion carried. 
 
Resolution No. 10-16 
 

B. PDSC Lapsed Funds for Pretrial Justice Reform Summit, May 11 – 14, 2016: Chief 
Justice Torres advised the board that he wanted to include this item on the board agenda to 
have Attorney Steve Hattori attend the Pretrial Justice Reform Summit in New Mexico. 



Page 4 of 5 

Chief Justice Torres stated that the material covered at the summit will be beneficial for an 
attorney at PDSC to attend. Subsequently, the following budget was prepared for board 
consideration: 

Pretrial Justice Reform Summit (1/15/2016 Draft) 
May 11 – 13, 2016 
CCJ/COSCA Western Region 
La Posada De Santa Fe, New Mexico 
Budget (As of February 24, 2016) 
Airfare Roundtrip (GUM-NEW MEXICO-GUM) $1,900.00 
Per Diem ($163/day X 5 days)  815.00 
Registration  $1,000.00 
ESTIMATED BUDGET  $3,715.00 

Motion was made and seconded to approve $3,715.00 from PDSC lapsed funds to 
have Attorney Stephen Hattori attend the pretrial Justice Reform Summit in Santa 
Fe, New Mexico from May 11 – 13, 2016. Motion carried. 

Resolution No. 11-16 

C. APD Lapsed Funds for Shanks-Kindlon Training: Administrative Director Gogue
reported that this item was placed on the agenda in order to properly allocate actual cost
between PDSC and APD. Once the cost is determined, we will make an amendment to
Resolution No. 04-16 that will properly charge PDSC and APD for the actual number of
attorneys attending such training. With the completion of the training sessions, there was a
total of ten (10) attorney in attendance – six (6) from PDSC and four (4) from APD,
respectively. The total cost for the 3-day workshop was $12,407.83. In splitting the cost
between PD and APD, the split is cost for attorneys attending between both organizations
would be $8,271.89 for PD and $4,145.94 for APF. Consequently, Resolution No. 04-16
will be amended accordingly.

D. Shanks-Kindlon Training Evaluation: The board was provided with the consolidation
of the evaluation provided by the attendees. The consolidation is provided in the attached
report with a summary of responses.

E. Executive Session:  Chief Justice Torres recessed the Board of Trustees’ meeting at
1:05PM to discuss the following matters:

i. Potential Liability
ii. APD Managing Attorney Performance Evaluation

iii. Executive Director – Search Committee Selection

Resuming regular session at 1:20PM, Chief Justice Torres announced the renewal of 
appointment for Managing Attorney Annie Gayle as the Managing Attorney for Alternate 
Public Defender.  

He then announced the recommendation and acceptance of the Executive Director’s Search 
Committee of Attorney Stephen Hattori as the new Executive Director of the PDSC. 
Attorney Hattori’s first official day as Executive Director will be on March 11, 2016, which 





Agenda Item #VII-A 

Alternate Public Defender
FY2017 Budget Request
(Details to be Presented

at BOT Meeting) 



































Page 1 of 4 

SHANKS-KINDLON TRAINING 
EVALUATION SUMMARY 

February 18-20, 2016 

Training was conducted over a 3-day period with two half sessions and one full day session.  The half day 
sessions were on Thursday and Saturday, and the one full day session was on Friday. 

In planning the training with SHANKS-KINDLON, we were hoping to have all attorneys from PDSC and APD 
present at the 3-day lecture and practicum. However, several APD attorneys were unable to able to attend as 
they were covering court, preparing for trial or on sick leave. The attorneys who attended were as follows: 

Public Defender (6) Alternate Public Defender (4) 
Richard Dirkx  Annie Gayle 
Peter Sablan  John Morrison 
Steve Hattori  James Spivey 
Amber Robinson Eric Overton 
Will Jones 
Kristine Borja 

Based on the surveys received from the ten (10) participants, they generally thought that the trial clinic was 
worth the investment. For the three days, the Shanks-Kindlon team came in above average – with stellar 
ratings from most of the attendees. The lawyers appreciated the format and balance between lecture and 
hands-on experience. The attorneys also appreciated having jurors and receiving feedback from the jury panel 
relative to their “trial delivery skills.” 

Overall, the attorneys would like to see the Shanks-Kindlon team return in provide more trial training for the 
PDSC/APD team. They also wanted to be provided with lecture material for them to keep.    

Of the responses received for Day 1, Thursday, February 18, the results are as follows (rating from 1 – 10: with 
10 being excellent): 

QUESTION 10 9 8 7 
Theme & Theory 7 2 1 
Investigation 7 3 
Story Telling 8 1 1 
Opening 5 3 2 
Closing 7 1 1 1 

Day 1 Comments – What things you like best: 
• Brainstorming exercise
• Constantly used examples
• Lecture
• Opening lecture
• Story telling
• Good energy
• Anecdotes of presentation / drawing from experience of presenters



Page 2 of 4 
 

• I liked how they could each give their own stories. Both very good speakers. 
• Discussing roles of investigators 

 
Day 1 Comments – What could be approved: 

• Maybe a longer description of storytelling with more examples  
• A complete example before we do it 
• More lecture 
• Less ridicule of political views you disagree with. This should be non-partisan event. 
• Examples 
• Handouts 
• Spread it over more days. Fewer hours. (More time for individual preparation). 
• More examples 
• Great balance of on-hands and lecture 

 
Day 1 Comments – Other Comments: 

• These are solid presenters 
• More lecture 
• EXCELLENT 
• Room too cold 

 
 
Day 2, Friday, February 19, the results are as follows (rating from 1 – 10: with 10 being excellent): 

QUESTION 10 9 8 7 
Opening Statement Breakout Session 10 1   
Cross Examination of Expert Witness 6 3 1  
Direct Examination 7 2 1  
Closing Arguments 7 1 2  

 
Day 2 Comments – What things you like best: 

• Very practical advice with specific application. I appreciate the fact that non-lawyer staff participated. 
• Breakout session 
• The opening statement breakout was a great opportunity to brainstorm and get ideas from other 

lawyers. So many great ideas came out and every lawyer had such different styles. It was scary and 
helpful at the same time, to stand up and do the opening and the cross-examination. Both so very 
important. I liked that even the critique was not too bad. All comments were good. It was great having 
a jury. 

• Goo, practical advice. 
• Used an example every time gave a point or tip; presented each session in a relatable manner and in 

an interesting manner; wealth of knowledge/experience; takes difference of styles/opinions with an 
open mind. 

• Lecture 
• Feedback; homework is horrible, but feedback was great 

 
Day 2 Comments – What could be approved: 

• Maybe specific assault legal topics 



Page 3 of 4 
 

• Direct examination lecture 
• Today was a little long. I felt exhausted by the end and the last hour or so was difficult. 
• The room, unfortunately, is very cold – need to control temperature better. It is hard to balance 

working and trying to prepare for this training – but this is so very helpful. 
• Copies of material talked about (e.g. Witness Tips) 
• More lecture 
• Venue set-up should feel more like courtroom. 

 
Day 2 Comments – Other Comments: 

• One of the best trial practice programs I have attended. Very practical, productive and jammed with 
useful tips. Very credible presenters who were able to debunk common myths and pitfalls. 

• An incredibly beneficial day. I learned a lot and was impressed with the improvements and confidence 
the other attorneys demonstrated. The inclusion of non-lawyers was great. 

• Terry and Laurie are very good speakers. I have enjoyed their comments and help. 
 
 
Day 3, Saturday, February 20, the results are as follows (rating from 1 – 10: with 10 being excellent): 

QUESTION 10 9 8 7 
Closing Argument 8  1  
Questions & Answer 7 1  1 

 
Day 3 Comments – What things you like best: 

• The comments - critique 
• Practical application of lectures 
• I liked being able to have a mock jury to listen to us. Having time to critique each other – was 

important. Being taped was also a positive thing – it helped to see how you look and improve. 
• Great feedback from Terry and Laurie and the jurors. Thank you for helping raise our standards of 

practice. 
• Everyone’s improvement over a short period of time was impressive. Even though we are all friends, 

this brought us closer together. 
• The hands-on practice took some effort, but feedback was great. 
• Group participation exercises 

 
Day 3 Comments – What could be approved: 

• Nothing  
• Have a full example of each section by presenters 
• So far I can’t think of anything 
• Maybe hold it again annually? 
• Could be more constructive criticism. Different experience levels of experience made some exercises 

difficult. 
• Venue set-up [courtroom] 
• More role play by instructors 

 
Day 3 Comments – Other Comments: 

• The jurors had really good and productive comments and is well appreciated 



Page 4 of 4 
 

• Thank you so much for being here and sharing your knowledge and experience with us. 
• A great experience I hope we can get you to come back again. 
• Presenters were awesome and dynamic. 

 
 
 


























	03-15-16 PDSC Board Meeting Packet
	3_15_16_Board_Resolutions



